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This is one of many sections that contain information, photos, newspaper articles, internet items, etc. 
of the St. Matthews area.  Many of the items came from Al Ring’s personal collections but many peo-
ple have helped and I have tried to give credit where I can.  
 

The purpose of this “collection” was to create the history of St. Matthews, Kentucky.  Being retired I 
now have time to do many of the things I have always wanted, this project is just one of them.  
  
All graphics have been improved to make the resolution as good as possible, but the reader should 
remember that many came from copies of old newspaper articles and photos.   Credit to the source of 
the photos, etc. is provided whenever it was available.  We realize that many items are not identified 
and regret that we weren’t able to provide this information.  As far as the newspaper articles that are 
not identified, 99% of them would have to be from one of three possible sources.  The Courier-
Journal, The Louisville Times or one of the Voice publications.  Books that we have used for some 
information include, Randy, Cactus, Uncle, Ed and the Golden age of Louisville Television, Wag-
gener High School Alumni Directory 1996, Waggener Traditional High School Alumni Directory 
2007, Memories of Fontaine Ferry Park, St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass by Samuel W. 
Thomas, St. Matthews, 25 Years a City Two Centuries a Community, St. Matthews 1960-1995, Wag-
gener Lair’s 1958 to 1962, The Holy Warrior, Muhammad Ali, Louisville’s Own (An Illustrated En-
cyclopedia Of Louisville Area Recorded Pop Music From 1953 to 1983).  
 
 
Please use this information as a reference tool only.  If the reader uses any of the information for any 
purpose other than a reference tool, they should get permission from the source.   
  



 
 

St. Matthews area churches, A—G: 
 Some general history of churches in the St. Matthews ares. 
 Beargrass Christian Church 
 Beechwood Baptist 
 Bethel-St. Paul Church, was Bethel Evangelical 
 Broadway Baptist Church 
 Calvin Presbyterian Church 
 Christ Church United Methodist, was Broadway Methodist 
 East Unit Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses  
  
St. Matthews area churches, H—R: 
 Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church 
 Holy Trinity Catholic Church 
 Our Lady Of Lourdes 
 
St. Matthews area churches, S—Z: 
 St. Johns Lutheran Church 
 St. Matthews Baptist Church 
 St. Matthews Episcopal Church         
 St. Matthews United Methodist Church        
 Second Church of Christ, Scientist                 
 Second Presbyterian Church 
 Westport Road Church Of Christ 
  

St. Matthews Area Churches: 



Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

Highlights in the life of HARVEY BROWNE CHURCH 
 
The history of Harvey Browne is rich with evidence of faith, Christian service, and growth. It always seemed to be in a con-
stant and often disappointing search for space to meet the needs of its congregation. This account traces the saga from 1891 
to 1987, the last year of a major expansion. 
 
1891 The church grew out of a mission Sunday school started in 1891 by a group of young people in Crescent Hill Presby-
terian Church who were concerned about the unchurched families living in the farming community of St, Matthews. The 
mission group met Sunday afternoons and Friday evenings in the old Greathouse School located in the triangle on Lexington 
Road. 
 

Hugh L. Barret, an elder in Highland Presbyterian Church, took an early interest in the mission and kept it alive when sparse 
attendance appeared to forecast its demise. Barret recruited additional families, concentrating on those with children for his 
wife's Sunday school class. Ministers from Louisville churches filled the pulpit for Friday night prayer meetings. 
 
1914 Mrs. Edmonia Browne of Bardstown gave the Presbytery $2000 as a memorial to her brother, Harvey Browne a physi-
cian. She wanted the money to go for "mountain missions." but Barret prevailed upon Presbytery to use it to purchase land 
and build a permanent home for the St. Matthews Mission to be named in honor of her brother. The result was a one-room 
frame building, heated with a pot- bellied stove, and still stands at 118 Bauer Avenue. 
 

1916 Barret urged that a permanent church be organized and in July, 1916, the original 27 members petitioned Presbytery 
for a charter. And thus 25 years after the original Sunday school was started, Harvey Browne Memorial Presbyterian Church 
wa born. The first year budget was $84. In October, 1916, William T. McElroy, a deacon in the Woodland Presbyterian 
Church, entered the Louisville Presbyterian Seminary and also supplied the Harvey Browne pulpit as a layman until July, 
1918, when he was ordained and installed as its pastor. He served in a part time  capacity until 1937 when he resigned to 
devote full time as Editor of the Christian Observer. 
 

1922 The first property acquisition was a manse, built at the corner of Willis and Meridian Avenues in St. Matthews. The 
lot, valued at $800, was given to the Church by A.J. '"Tony" Eline, an elder and church leader . 
 
Eline was one of the young people who attended the Mission Sunday school formed in 1891. He and three members of his 
family were charter members of the church. Soon after, his sons, A. J. "Bud" Eline Jr. and Sidney Eline, joined and became 
officers; Bud an elder, Sidney a deacon. 
 
Tony Eline was an early real estate developer in the St. Matthews area, an automobile dealer and savvy businessman. He 
was an excellent example of the good steward. Over the years he gave several building lots to the church and funds to pur-
chase property the church wanted but he didn't own. It is obvious that without the financial support and leadership of the 
Eline family the church wouldn't have survived the first 25 years. 
 
1928 The church made an offer of $6000 for four lots in Oxford Place bordering Lexington road.  
 
The Session, after determining the cost, voted to install water pipes in the church and the manse. 
 
1930 The 1920's and early 30's were described as 'a time of close knit family ice cream socials and watermelon feasts." The 
men took turns chopping kindling and carrying coal and the women did all the church housekeeping. They also made and 
sold soup and performed in a Kitchen band with “instruments” from cupboards and drawers and toy horns used to play the 
melody. Their uniforms were red and white, trimmed with ice cream spoons -all to raise money to supplement the church 
budget. 
 

The congregation voted to grant an option on the lot and building of the st.Matthews Baptist Church for $6000, the details to 
be worked out by the official boards." (Session Minutes) 
 
1937 In May, the congregation called the Reverend Charles W. Owens as Harvey Brownes first full time minister. His arri-
val coincided with St. Matthews' first real growth spurt, when many Louisvillians sought to relocate on higher ground after 
their homes had been damaged by the 1937 flood. 
 
1938 In March, the treasurer reported on the financial standing showing a balance of $154.14 in the general fund and a 
building fund balance of $146.79. The budget for the fiscal year 1938-1939 was $2190.50. 
 

1939 A Sunday School addition was built on the back of the church and alterations on the front (the church had been remod-
eled in 1937) at a cost of $5000, toward which Mr. Eline donated $1000. 
 
Boy Scout troop #315 was organized. In following years members collected tons of waste paper and tin cans and sold war 
bonds to help the war effort. In one drive they sold more than a quarter millions dollars worth of bonds. 
 
1941 In June, Harvey Browne celebrated the 25th anniversary of the church and 50th year of the Mission's founding. 
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Highlights in the life of HARVEY BROWNE CHURCH 
 
Carl Lauderback, Ernest Weber, John Mann and James Robertson were appointed Junior Deacons and were to act as ushers 
during the morning worship. 
 

During the war, Harvey Browne operated a recreation center in the rear of a building next door for soldiers stationed at Bow-
man Field and for a Red Cross first aid program. 
 
1942 In January, Tony Eline and son, Bud Eline, donated $8500 for the church to purchase six 50 foot lots and an apartment 
building at the corner of Nanz Avenue and Breckenridge Lane. The property was to be used for a new church which was to 
be built after the duration of the war. 
 

Reverend Owens resigned in Mayas pastor and was succeeded by Reverend Paul M. Watson, Harvey Brown's third minister 
who served through 1938. 
 
Mr. Eline and his two sons, Bud and Sidney, gave $3600 which with $700 rent collections from the Nanz Avenue apartment 
property paid off the existing building fund debt. 
 

1947 The congregation considered purchasing the church property of Beargrass Christian Church. The offering price of 
$80,000 was considered a rare bargain. After applying all of Harvey Browne's assets, the Eline family guaranteed to pay the 
balance making the new property free from any Debt. Three months later Beargrass Christian Church decided not to sell. 
Harvey Browne's architect was told to continue work on the plans for the new church at Nanz and Breckenridge. 
 
1948 Zoning Commission requirements and lack of adequate parking space forced a decision to can the building plans at 
Nanz and Breckenridge and search for another location.  
 
Reverend Watson resigned and the congregation called Dr. Olof Anderson, Jr., a Louisville native who was installed in Feb-
ruary, 1949.  
 

A. J. Eline Sr. and Jr. proposed that the church properties at Nanz and Breckenridge and 118 Meridian Avenue (manse) be 
exchanged for lots no. 6 and 7 in Parkside Subdivision, section 3, with free and clear title and that a manse of four bedroom 
brick be erected on lot no. 7 at no cost to the church. The new manse was completed on Church Way in October and was 
occupied by pastors until 1969 and is now rented to dentists.  
 
1950 Construction began on the new building at 311 Browns Lane. The sanctuary could seat 334; the basement included 
four classrooms, a large room for the men's class, kitchen and  nursery. The large center space was for recreation/dining and 
Sunday school space for youth and Juniors. 'The total cost, including architect's fees, equipment and grading of parking lot 
not exceed $168,000." (771e Plans Committee).  
 
The congregation of nearly 500 had completely outgrown the space on Bauer Avenue and was worshipping on Sunday 
mornings in the Vogue Theater on Lexington Road. 
  

1952 The first worship service in the new church was held on January 20. The congregation continued to grow and member-
ship exceeded 900 by the end of 1953.  
 
Reverend Anderson's energy and dynamic personality made him a good choice to lead the congregation at that time of tran-
sition. He was very effective with youth, was a pacifist and an advocate of civil rights causes. In 1955 he invited an African 
American family, living near Prospect, to attend Harvey Browne because their church was in Louisville's west end. He care-
fully prepared the congregation beforehand and the visitors were greeted courteously.  
 

1954 In April, construction began on a two-story addition to provide more space for Sunday school classes and the daily 
kindergarten (now Preschool). The large upstairs room was named in memory of Sidney W. Eline, one of the four church 
members killed in World War II.  
 
The next year membership grew to 1100, requiring two services on Sunday morning. In three years Harvey Browne became 
the largest church in Kentucky with a membership of over 1600.  
 

1957 The Middletown Mission was started by several of our church families who lived in the area. Harvey Browne spon-
sored the group and pledged $50,000 to erect an all-purpose building which became Trinity Presbyterian Church on Shel-
byville Road.  
 

1959 Reverend Anderson resigned to become Executive Secretary of Louisville Presbytery. During his eleven years at Har-
vey Browne the membership had nearly quadrupled.  
 

Dr. Joseph B. Mullin was called as the new pastor. His charisma brought in scores of new members who kept the pews filled 
to capacity on Sunday mornings and late arrivals had to sit in the hall or the Barret Room at the back of the Sanctuary. Dual 
Sunday school classes were scheduled with four or five groups meeting at the same time in Eline Hall.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

St. Matthews Area Churches:                 Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church 



Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

Highlights in the life of HARVEY BROWNE CHURCH 
 
After finally locating in their new church the members began to give attention to outreach fellowship and community 
concerns.. In the early 'SOs members, with Emory Willeys leadership, helped build Presbytery's Cedar Ridge Camp 
near Jeffersonville.. Harvey Browners use it for retreats, picnics and the annual Labor Day weekend Do-In for all church 
youth. 
 

In 1957 the church "adopted missionaries to Brazil, Bob and Martha Camenisch and financially supported them and their six 
children for a number of years. There were youth mission trips, Ice Cream Festivals, and the Harvey Bees Square Dancers 
gathered to Do-Si-Do in Eline hail. 
 

1961 A new educational wing was dedicated in April, named Anderson Hall in honor of the former pastor. The same month 
Mrs. Harold (Helen) Wich was employed as Harvey Browne's first full- time music director and organist. 
 

1962 Three services were scheduled on Palm Sunday and Easter. In November a special Sunday service was held in the 
Waggener High School gym with more than 1200 members attending. Plans were presented to build a new sanctuary and 
additional classrooms. A building fund drive began in 1963 and ground was broken for the new sanctuary two years later. 
 

1966 The first service was held November 13, exactly 50 years and three months after Harvey Browne church was started. 
Almost immediately after the new sanctuary was completed renovation began on the old church building. The rear wall was 
moved forward almost half way to the chancel forming a new chapel, narthex and two classrooms. The balcony became part 
of a youth center. 
 
1970 During the turbulent '60s Reverend Mullin became an outspoken advocate of civil rights and his challenge to the con-
gregation to follow his lead was met with mixed response and some sharp criticism. He resigned in 1969. The Reverend 
Thomas L. Jones arrived in 1970. During his tenure Jones initiated many programs for community outreach and fellowship: 
Senior Citizens East was given the Chapel basement for offices, dinner-dramas were presented in the Foyer and an alphabet 
of programs: Sunday Night At Church, Saturday Night Out, Couples Under Eighty, spouses combined age. 
 

1977 Tom Jones resigned and the Reverend Richard Kauffman was called. Space was again an issue and he guided the study 
and planning for an all-purpose facility. Misunderstandings over style and expectations arose between the pastor and the 
members and Kauffmann resigned in 1980. 
 

1981 The Reverend Neil Weatherhogg arrived in November and began a series of "living room" meetings with members to 
hear their opinions, complaints and hopes. He delivered forceful sermons had strong administrative abilities. The search for 
space arose again and Neil guided the committees through several years of planning for new and remodeled space. 
 
1987 Harvey Browne completed its latest expansion with a $1.1 million construction and remodeling project that included a 
new multipurpose building (Emory Hall) remodeled Eline Hall, new and remodeled classrooms, new offices and a new liv-
ing room. 
 
Primary reference for Highlights was Gary Luhr's extensive history in the 75h Anniversary issue of  The Harvey Browne News, 1991. 
 

Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

September 1991, Harvey Browne News—Let’s Look At Where We’ve Been 
 

August 13, 1916. The nation's attention was divided between war news from Europe and the election campaigns of President 
Woodrow Wilson and his Republican challenger Charles Evans Hughes. Louisvillians prayed for relief from a week of near 
record temperatures that had gripped the eastern half of the United States; and on that sultry Sunday afternoon, a new church  
was organized by the Presbytery of Louisville, South, to serve the sparsely settled area east of the city known as St. Mat-
thews.  
 

The church, with 27 charter members, grew out of a Mission Sunday school started in 1891 by a group of young people from 
the Crescent Hill Presbyterian Church. The mission group met on Sunday afternoons and Friday evenings in the old 
Greathouse School in the Triangle on Lexington Road (the present site of Super-X-Drugs). Hugh L. Barret, an Elder at 
High1and Presbyterian Church, took an early interest in the Mission and kept it alive when sparse attendance appeared to 
forecast its demise. Years later the St. Matthews Sun attributed the mission's ultimate success to Barret's "sincere efforts and 
sterling Christian character."  
 
Barret brought coal to heat the building in winter and the Eline family brought kindling for the fire. “Assisted by students 
from the Presbyterian Seminary , Barret recruited additional families, concentrating on those with children for his wife's 
Sunday school class. 
  

Ministers from Louisville churches filled the pulpit for Friday night prayer meetings until 1914, when the Reverend J.C. 
Longnecker took over the job for two years while awaiting a missionary assignment in Africa. That same year, Edmonia  
 
 
Mrs. Matthews by streetcar and the interurban.  
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September 1991, Harvey Browne News—Let’s Look At Where We’ve Been 
 
Browne Roberts of Bardstown gave the Presbytery $2,000 as a memorial to her brother, a physician, Harvey Browne. She 
wanted the money to go for "mountain missions," but Barret prevailed upon Presbytery to let it be used to purchase land and 
build a permanent home for the St. Matthews Mission. The result was a one-room frame building, later modified, that still 
stands at 118 Bauer Avenue.  
 

Upon its completion, Barret deemed it wise for a permanent church to be organized in July 1916, the 27 original members 
petitioned Presbytery, declaring that the new church would produce a “thriving congregation” in a short time. All pledged to 
make it "self- supporting" in as short a time as possible. Thus 25 years after the original Sunday school mission was started, 
Harvey Browne Memorial Presbyterian Church was born.  
 
In October, the Presbytery appointed William T. McElroy, a Deacon in the Woodland Presbyterian Church, to address the 
congregation and to ascertain its viability. "I came out on a Thursday and stayed for 20 years," McElroy later observed. The 
same month he entered the Louisville Seminary to begin studying for the ministry. He continued to supply the Harvey 
Browne pulpit as a layman until July 1918, when he was ordained and installed as its Pastor. A week later he performed the 
first baptism at the church (the first wedding didn't occur until nearly 20 years later).  
 

McElroy served, though only in a part time capacity, until January 1, 1937, when he left to devote full time to his concurrent 
duties as editor of the Christian Observer. A meticulous man, he started his ministry on a salary of $50 a month, $10 more 
than he had earned as a student. For several years he and his wife traveled each week from Louisville's West End to St. Mat-
thews by streetcar and the interurban. Occasionally they would miss the interurban and .have to walk the last three miles. All 
of that ended in 1922, when they moved into the first manse located at the corner of Meridian and Willis Avenues (the pre-
sent site of the House of Frames).  
 
An observer recalling this period in the church's history described it as "a time of close-knit family ice cream socials and 
watermelon feasts." The men took turns chopping kindling and carrying coal and the women did all the church housekeep-
ing. They also sold home-made soup and performed in a "kitchen band" (with pots, pans, toy horns and red and white uni-
forms trimmed with ice cream spoons) to raise money to supplement the church's budget.  
 
In May, 1937, the congregation called the Reverend Charles W. Owens of Ft. Thomas as Harvey Browne's first full time 
minister. His arrival coincided with St. Matthews' first real growth spurt, when many Louisvillians whose homes had been 
damaged in the 1937 flood sought to relocate on higher ground. The building on Bauer Avenue was remodeled and Sunday 
school rooms added in 1939, but the congregation was rapidly outgrowing its existing home. In January, 1942, the Eline 
family donated money to buy the property at the corner of Nanz Avenue and Breckinridge Lane. Plans were drawn but the 
onset of World War II delayed construction. Zoning problems eventually forced the congregation to abandon the location.  
  

During the war, Harvey Browne operated a Soldier Center in the building next door for recreation for soldiers stationed at 
Bowman Field. Use of the recreation hall was granted to the Red Cross for a first aid program. Members of Boy Scout -
Troop #315 (organized in 1939) collected tons of waste paper and tin cans to help the war effort. The troop also received 
three awards from the U .S. Treasury Department for selling war bonds. In one drive they sold more than a quarter of a mil-
lion dollars worth of bonds. On August 14, 1945, the church held a V-J Day service for four of its members who had been 
killed and 35 others (34 men and one woman) who had served during the war.  
 

Returning soldiers and sailors led a nationwide exodus to the suburbs, and by 1947, St. Matthews had grown to more than 
18,000 people. Harvey Browne was likewise bursting at the seams. In 10 years, membership had grown from fewer than 90 
to more than 300. Every available classroom was packed on, Sunday mornings with two classes meeting in the sanctuary, 
another in the vestibule and another in the furnace room.  
 

Pressed for immediate space, the congregation voted in November 1947 to purchase the Beargrass Christian Church property 
at Browns Lane and Shelbyville Road. The offer to sell was withdrawn, however, three months later. Three more years 
would pass before construction finally began on a new building at 311 Browns Lane. By then, the congregation of nearly 
500 had completely outgrown the space on Bauer Avenue and was worshipping on Sunday mornings in the Vogue Theatre 
on Lexington Road.  
 

Owens resigned in May, 1942, and in September the congregation called the Reverend Paul M. Watson of the Buechel Pres-
byterian Church.  
 
Watson resigned in August 1948, and the congregation called the Reverend Olof Anderson, a Louisville native, from the 
First Presbyterian Church in Richmond, Kentucky. Anderson had grown up in the Woodland Presbyterian Church and met 
his wife, Martha Ward, while serving his first pastorate in Frankfort. The couple married on Derby Day 1934, and had three 
daughters by the time he was installed at Harvey Browne in February 1949.  
 
Anderson's stern appearance prompted the church youth to nick-name him "Holy Oly, the sinister minister." His energy and 
dynamic personality, however, made him the perfect choice to lead a bustling congregation.  From the outset he worked   
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September 1991, Harvey Browne News—Let’s Look At Where We’ve Been 
 
effectively with young people (his stern countenance notwithstanding).  He directed several youth conferences and for years 
led the high school age group at the church while his wife led a college age group that met in the couple’s living room.  
(Four men from the class later entered the ministry.) 
 
Anderson also instituted the candlelight carol services, complete with children’s procession, that filled the church at 6 
o’clock on Christmas morning during the ‘50s. 
 

A new manse was completed on Church Way in October 1949, ground was broken for a new church building.  Excavation 
was nearly finished when the Presbytery decided the new building would be too small to handle anticipated growth over the 
next several years. It subsequently approved an interest-free loan that allowed the structure to be enlarged.  The cornerstone 
was laid Jun 17, 1951, and the first service held January 20, 1952, in what is now the chapel. 
 

It didn’t take long to fill the new space as the congregation continued to grow.  Membership exceeded 900 by the end of 
1953.  By April 1954, construction had begun on a two-story addition to provide more Sunday school space and room for the 
daily kindergarten that opened in September.  The large upstairs room in the new building was named in memory of Sidney 
W. Eline, one of the four church members killed in World War II. 
 
Harvey Browne installed its first Associate Minister, George Clementson, in October 1953.  Two years later, membership 
had grown to 1,100, requiring two services on Sunday mornings.  In three more years, it surpassed 1,600, making Harvey 
Browne the largest Presbyterian church in Kentucky. 
 

The congregation began to look for ways of serving the community beyond St. Matthews.  In October 1957, an outpost 
church under Harvey Browne’s sponsorship began meeting at the Middletown Women’s Club.  The following sprint, it was 
formally organized as Trinity Presbyterian Church.  Harvey Browne agreed to guarantee a $60,000 loan for Trinity to erect 
an all-purpose building as phase one of a three-phase building program. 
 
Membership was still on the rise at the end of 1959, when Anderson resigned to become Executive Secretary of the Louis-
ville Presbytery.  During his 11 years at Harvey Browne, the congregation had nearly quadrupled. 
 

The church called the Reverend Joseph B. Mullin, a Missouri native, from the First Presbyterian Church in Paducah.  He 
arrived with his wife, Betty, and their two children in April 1960. 
 
Mullin's charisma brought in more new members who kept the pews filled on Sunday mornings. Late arrivers had to sit in 
the hall or the Barret Room at the back of the sanctuary. Dual Sunday school classes also had to be scheduled, with as many 
as four or five meeting at the same time in Eline Hall. 
 

A new educational wing - Anderson Hall -was dedicated in April 1961, the same month the Session voted to hire Mrs. Har-
old (Helen) Wich as Harvey Browne's first full-time music director and organist. 
 
The need for additional space was dramatized the following year when three morning services had to be scheduled on Palm 
Sunday and Easter. Membership exceeded 1,800, more than 1,200 of whom attended a special Sunday morning service in 
November 1962 in the Waggener High School gymnasium. There plans were presented to build a new sanctuary and addi-
tional classrooms. A building fund drive was announced in October 1963, and by February, more than $700,000 had been 
pledged. Ground was broken in August 1965, and the first service held in the new (the present) sanctuary November 13, 
1966, exactly 50 years and three months after Harvey Browne church was started. 
 
The '60s were turbulent times. An air of unbounded optimism at the start of the decade gave way to cynicism, hatred and 
violence in the wake of assassinations, racial strife and protests over fighting in Vietnam. St. Matthews was also changing as 
its population grew older and suburban migration moved farther east. 
 
Stirred by the death of Dr. Martin Luther King, Mullin became an outspoken advocate of civil rights. He challenged the con-
gregation to follow his lead in an emotional sermon delivered on Palm Sunday 1968. The following year, he resigned to go 
back to school at Princeton Theological Seminary. In nine years he had helped the congregation grow to more than 2,300 
members. 
 

Mullin's outspokenness in behalf of equal rights generated mixed response from the congregation. Some rebelled and left 
Harvey Browne. Others began looking for ways the church could reach even farther into the community. 
 

Such were the conditions that greeted the Reverend Thomas L. Jones, who arrived February 1, 1970, with his wife, Marilyn, 
and their five children. Jones, a Florida native, had been minister at Meadowview Presbyterian Church in the 1950s, and 
worked for the General Assembly of the denomination's southern branch prior to returning to Louisville. 
 

Clearly it was a time for reassessing Harvey Browne's direction. In April 1970, the Session created a 'Task Force on Re-
sources to determine the church's mission for the next five years. Care was taken to ensure the entire congregation was repre-
sented and had input into its deliberations. 
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The task force took its job seriously and, in June 1971, delivered a 64-page report to the Session and and the Board of Dea-
cons. Its conclusion: Harvey Browne needed to change its "predominantly inward orientation" and strike a better balance 
between the community and the congregation. "As we have become larger, the demands of just running the church have 
caused us, perhaps imperceptibly, to devote more energies to ourselves," the report said. It noted that among various church 
organizations, only the Women of the Church directed a major part of their activities toward others. 
 
The task force faced several immediate concerns. Church membership had peaked at around 2,300. Approximately $200,000 
was still needed to pay for the latest expansion, with only a fourth of it pledged. Programs and expenditures had been cur-
tailed because of limited finances. And there was criticism that, with inflation, operating costs were consuming more of the 
church's disposable income, leaving less for benevolent giving. 
 
The task force recommended earmarking a certain percentage of the budget each year for benevolences, the percentage to 
increase over the next five years, and apportioning whatever was left for operating expenses. Such an approach is still used 
today. 
 
Interviews with community leaders had identified three groups with needs the church might address: youth, older persons 
and the poor. Within a year, the St. Matthews Area Ministries (St. MAM) was incorporated for that purpose, with Harvey 
Browne as a charter member. Senior Citizens East, an outgrowth of St. MAM, followed in 1974, again with Harvey Browne 
playing a major role in its operation. 
 
The church found other ways of reaching out to the community. One that was evident to anyone who tried to find a parking 
space in the church lot during the week was to make the building available to service and support groups of every descrip-
tion. Another, beginning in 1975, was the regular collection of food and money for Louisville United Against Hunger 
(LUAH). In 1976, the Harvey Browne Family Counseling Center opened to offer individual and group counseling in a 
Christian context for church members and non-members alike. 
 
The task force also recommended an internal reorganization to help the church carry out its new mission. Church Elders, 
responsible for Harvey Browne's spiritual life, and Deacons, who oversaw its finances, were combined into a single govern-
ing body. Other functions, in the future, would be carried out through five major operating councils responsible for worship, 
preparation, congregational care, outreach and support services.  A sixth council was created to keep the long-range plan 
updated. 
 

Though its" mission clearly had expanded, the church continued also to meet the congregation's needs. Choirs of all ages, 
often accompanied by instrumentalists ranging from ensembles to full orchestras, established Harvey Browne's reputation 
for its music ministry. The first "Do-In" at Camp Cedar Ridge, the annual Labor Day weekend retreat for all church youth, 
occurred in 1972. Fellowship activities ranging from pot lucks to square dancing rounded out the picture. The list included 
an alphabet soup of programs such a$ SNAC (for Sunday Night At Church), SNO (Saturday Night Out) and CUE (for Cou-
ples Under Eighty, referring to the spouses' combined age). 
 

Jones resigned in March 1977 to accept an executive position with the Louisville Seminary. The congregation called the 
Reverend Richard Kauffman, who arrived that fall from near Philadelphia with his wife, Judy, and their two sons. 
 
Many in the congregation had expressed a desire for more biblically-based worship on Sunday mornings, and Kauffman, a 
formal but affable man, provided it. He also supported efforts to highlight the talents of members and non-members alike 
through several series of fine arts programs. Kauffman reduced the Session from an unwieldy 60 members to 36. (The Board 
of Deacons and the Session had been combined a few years earlier). He guided the study and planning for the facilities eval-
uation that resulted in the recent construction and remodeling. 
 
The first Caroling Christmas Tree service by the Chancel Choir occurred in 1979, the first dinner theatre in 1980, and an 
important new ministry was started for single persons: S.O.L.O. CSingle Ones Loving Others). 
 

Kauffman resigned in 1980, and the congregation called the Reverend Neil Weatherhogg, who arrived from Kerrville, Texas 
in November 1981, with his wife, Janet, and their two sons. 
 

Besides continuing a Harvey Browne tradition of strong sermons on Sunday mornings, Weatherhogg demonstrated a strong 
administrative ability that was needed to keep a busy and growing staff focused in the same direction. He arrived at a time 
when the church was feeling its most recent growing pains. 
 

Though membership had declined slightly from its peak in the late '60s, the church found it needed both new and remodeled 
space to carry out its mission in the '80s. Progress on this front coincided with significant events on the national scene. In 
1983, the two main branches of the Presbyterian Church were reunited for the first time since the Civil War. In 1987, the 
General Assembly voted to move its formerly separate national headquarters from New York and Atlanta to Louisville. The 
same year, Harvey Browne completed the first phase of its latest expansion, which ultimately included new offices, new and 
remodeled class-rooms, a living room and a multi-purpose building named for Emory Willey, an active and longtime mem-
ber. 
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Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

September 1991, Harvey Browne News—Let’s Look At Where We’ve Been 
 
All of which is a far cry from the one-room building with the pot-bellied stove where the church began 75 years ago. The 
people who wrote its history , and the lives that have been touched in some way by what has gone on both inside and outside 
its walls would comprise a virtually endless list. 
 
For many years Harvey Browne has described itself as "a church of many styles striving to serve." But in 1988, a new long-
range planning committee determined an even broader statement was needed for the church to expand its horizons. From a 
nearly year-long study, presented at a Session retreat in May, 1988, the following vision statement emerged: 
 
"For Harvey Browne to become a stronger community of Christian believers who celebrate and share a common faith; who 
care for one another, respect and are strengthened by one another's differences; who warmly welcome strangers; and who 
actively take God's love into the world." 
 

It is a statement, coupled with a rich heritage, that will carry Harvey Browne Church into the 21st century. 
 

September 1991, Harvey Browne News—Let’s Look At Where We’ve Been—Photos from article 
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Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

September 1991, Harvey Browne News—Let’s Look At Where We’ve Been—Photos from article 
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Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

It Took 75 Years To Get Here 
 
"Here" is in rather sharp contrast with the one room frame building, heated with a pot-bellied stove, In which Harvey 
Browne Memorial Presbyterian Church began operation on Bauer Avenue in St. Matthews one Sunday in August 1916. 
"Here" -now -is a centrally heated and air conditioned multi-structured complex, consisting of a small chapel, a large sanctu-
ary , a spacious gym/auditorium/dining facility, and more than 50 classrooms, meetings rooms, and a library.  
    

Since that day in 1916, we have experienced two World Wars, several "police actions," A Great Depression and a number of 
recessions, a tornado and a few floods. In the meanwhile, we have made several moves, acquired and disposed of several 
pieces of real estate, and developed and discarded several complete building plans, and elaborate financing campaigns. 
    
The first property acquisition was of a manse, built in St. Matthews, at the corner of Willis and Meridian Avenues in 1922. 
    
An addition to provide more classroom space was made on the back of the Bauer Avenue building, some years later in 1939. 
    
In 1946, after a delay caused by World War II, plans were actually drawn and a building campaign organized for the con-
struction of a church at the corner of Breckinridge Lane and Nanz Avenue in St. Mat thews, on property donated by the 
Eline family in 1942. Unfortunately, Zoning Commission requirements and lack of adequate parking space forced a decision 
to cancel the plans for that location and to search for another site. 
 

Two years later, in 1949, the manse at 4213 Church Way, was built on property that bordered our present location. Last used 
as a manse in 1969, it is now rented to dentists for their offices. 
 
By early 1950 the congregation had grown to where it was without adequate facilities for worship services and it was meet-
ing for that purpose on Sunday mornings in the Vogue Theater on Lexington Road in St. Matthews. 
 

In 1950 ground was broken for construction of a new sanctuary at 311 Browns Lane on a parcel of land large enough for 
future expansion, as well as with space that was then considered large enough to provide for parking. 
 

It was very soon apparent, however, that we needed still more space, and in 1954 an addition was made to accommodate 
more Sunday School rooms, the Harvey Browne Kindergarten, and on the second floor, a single large room for social affairs 
which was named Eline Hall to honor Sidney Eline who had been killed in World War II. 
 

Three years later, in 1956, a large house and lot adjacent to the church on Browns Lane was purchased to provide for future 
expansion and to take care of the seemingly unending need for more Sunday School rooms this time for both adults and pre-
schoolers.  Named McElroy Hall to honor our first pastor, the former residence was immediately put to good use; however, 
more space was still required. 
 
And, in 1961 another addition was made to the wing in which Eline Hall was located. The new structure, named Anderson 
Hall to honor Olof Anderson, Jr., our pastor for eleven fruitful years, provided room for nurseries, still more Sunday School 
rooms, and much needed space for church staff offices. 
 

In addition to marking our 50th Anniversary , 1966 saw the completion and dedication of our present sanctuary. With a floor 
plan resembling a Celtic cross, the building includes: a choir rehearsal room, music department offices, still more Sunday 
School classrooms, and a utility room on the lower level; on the ground level a handsome foyer features an impressive facet-
ed colored glass window opposite a broad, short flight of steps leading to the narthex of the sanctuary; with its balcony the 
sanctuary seats 930 worshippers, and in the chancel area there is room for a 100 member choir, plus the console for an organ 
with chimes and almost 2500 pipes. (The installation of the Choir Manual for the organ in 1978, brought the ranks to 45, 
completing the instrument and making it one of the finest in the state.) 
 

Almost immediately after we began to use the new sanctuary and the rooms on the level below it, renovation was started 
(and quickly finished) on the old church building. From the narthex approximately half way to the chancel in the old sanctu-
ary, a partition was installed forming a lovely little chapel, a new narthex and two new classrooms. On the upper level, in 
what had been the balcony of the old sanctuary, and including the "new space" made by the partitioning, a large, yet cozy 
room was formed that quickly became an important part of the Youth Center. 
 
As recently as 1987, with the completion and dedication of Emory Hall, another series of renovation and construction plans 
was in work. Named for member Dr. Emory Willey,a dentist who has earned the respect and love of all of us through his 
hours and hours of service to our church, the multipurpose activities building joined the eastern transept of the new sanctu-
ary to what had been the pastor's office in the old church building. The beautiful little court- yard thus formed is far from 
wasted space, however, since it provides a pIay area for the kindergarten as well as a "look outside' for the users of the offic-
es, classrooms, and meeting rooms which border it. Meanwhile, below the old sanctuary, the facilities for Senior Citizens 
East have been considerably improved, and an elevator and ramps have been installed to provide easier access for everyone. 
Another phase of our plans was completed in 1989 when the ten memorial windows in the new sanctuary , and one in the 
Prayer Room were dedicated. Like the foyer window, they are made of faceted colored glass; they illustrate passages from 
the Old and the New Testaments.  
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Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church: 
 

It Took 75 Years To Get Here 
 
In 75 years we may have "just growed" like Topsy—although the various new structures and additions are architecturally 
compatib1e—it seems however, that planning for the future is a characteristic of Harvey Browne rather than a phenomenon. 
It's quite obvious that we wil1 always have a plan or p1ans "in the works" to improve our abi1ities to serve our members and 
our community. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1952 original Browns Lane church building dedicated. Chapel (1) and classrooms (2) now, where original sanctuary was. 
Part of today's Youth Center is above (2). Classrooms (3) where Lydia and Barret rooms were; rest of Youth Center above 
them. (4) originally pastor's study -new section (5) includes elevator serving five levels. 1954 Eline Hall dedicated -areas (6) 
and (7) were classrooms -large rooms above them used for stage productions, social affairs. 1961 Anderson Hall added to 
Eline, provided classrooms in areas (11) and (12) subsequent renovations converted (11) to new Church Offices. 1966 space 
(8) was added between E{ine and Anderson, it and (7) have been remodeled to make a nursery. 1966 the new sanctuary and 
foyer (16) -(17) -(18) dedicated. Rooms in (13) and (14) built at same time. (13) recently renovated to make ladies' lounge; 
church library on level above. Originally Church Office (14) now Church Living Room; Session Room on level above. 
Chancel area (16) was remodeled to accommodate special wor- ship services. 1987 Emory Hall (15) dedicated -new kitchen 
(9) and new classroom (10) built at same time. 
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Courtesy Ray Purdom, some time in the 1950’s. 
 

Harvey Browne Church Choir, December 24, 1953 

 

Back  row - 2nd from the left - Phyllis Mills - '61, 3rd from the left - Ellen Sommer - '61 (Ray's 
future wife, of whom Ray says"...I didn't know from Adam at the time")  
 

Front Row - 4th from the left - John Bush (John had the guts to sing a solo one Christmas), 8th 
from the left (Susie Cooke), 10th from the left  Ray Purdom (What an angellic look!), 12th from 
the left - Diane Lamar  
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Courtesy Harvey Brown web site:  http://
www.harveybrowne.org/Content.asp?
page=location                      Today 



Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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October 2, 1952 

 
February 21, 1952 



Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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March 26, 1953 

October 15, 1953 

December 24, 1953 



April 1, 1954 

Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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April 8, 1954 



Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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February 2, 1956 

 March 1, 1956 



December 20, 1956 

Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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February 27, 1964, Rest of Article not on this church 

March 24, 1966, The Voice-Jeffersonian 



Courtesy of Al Ring:                        Harvey Browne Memorial Presbyterian Church, 1958 
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Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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December 26, 1957 

December 25, 1958 



Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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October 29, 1959 



Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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June 7, 1960   

July 7, 1960 

 November 5, 1959 



Courtesy of Ray Purdom: 
 
I’m guessing that it’s the college-level Sunday School class at Harvey Browne.  That’s brown’s 
Lane in the background.  About 1960, the only person I recognize is Margaret Sommer, Ellen’s 
mother, holding the Bible. 
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Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 
 

St. Matthews Area Churches:                Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church  

 April 20, 1961 

 

November 10, 1966 



October 31, 1968 

Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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June 26, 1969 



Courtesy Lynne Rae Milroy Wiles (60):                            1991 
 

 
 

Courtesy of Lee Bailey (61): 
 
Joe and Betty Mullin, Easter 1993 in Greensboro, NC.  Pastor of Harvey Browne for many years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

:                        Waggener High Alumni comments: 
 
June 2001—   Joe Mullin, the former minister at Harvey Browne Presbyterian Church on Browns 
Lane, is now living in Greensboro. I just got off the phone with him after a terrific half-hour conversation. He is now 77 and 
still preaches occasionally in the area (He had been the minister at 1st Presbyterian in Greensboro for about 20 years before 
retirement.) He remembered so many members of the Waggener class of '61 and said to send his greetings. 
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Courtesy The Courier-Journal:               December 23, 2008 
 

Harvey Browne Memorial Presbyterian gets new 
look in time for Christmas 

 

St. Matthews church celebrates new sanctuary 

 

At a recent Sunday evening concert, the Chancel Choir at Har-
vey Browne Memorial Presbyterian Church sang of "brighter 
visions" beaming afar -- as it also presented a brighter vision to 
the congregation. 
 

The church on Browns Lane in St. Matthews is celebrating its 
first Christmas in a new sanctuary after a $3 million renovation. 
 

The lighting and acoustics were enhanced, giving what had 
been a somewhat dark and dreary space a new atmosphere, 
worshippers say. 
 

"You can see!" Wilma Bennett said. 
 

It's become "a beautiful, light-filled place of worship," said 
Juergen Tossmann, another member. 
 

The church will hold two Christmas Eve services today, and a dedication is planned for next month. 
 

Five years ago, the church had considered building a new two-level sanctuary with space for other uses in the basement. A 
1951 chapel would have been demolished, and the sanctuary, built in the 1960s, would have been used for education. 
 

But the idea proved too costly, and two years later the church decided to renovate instead, expanding only a gathering space 
outside the sanctuary. 
 

"I had no idea you could take that existing space and make it look so incredible and work so well," said the Rev. John Rop-
er, the church's pastor. JRA Architects did the design, and the building contractor was Wehr Construction. 
 

The changes include angling new pews to give a better view and installing new pipes for a refurbished organ. A 15-foot blue 
glass cross hanging in front is surrounded by 1,000 individual crosses, at least half of which were made by church members. 
 

"I love it all," said member Edith Light. "It was plain vanilla. Now it's tutti-frutti." 
 

Other details are a new set of liturgical furnishings -- including a pulpit and communion table with copper accents -- created 
by artist Guy Tedesco of Jeffersonville, Ind. 
 

Larry Brandenburg, the minister of music, conducted the choir and an instrumental ensemble at the recent "Festival of Read-
ings and Carols for Advent and Christmas." 
 

The chancel area around the altar was reconfigured to make it more open and spacious and to improve the sound. 
"It's a stunning difference," Brandenburg said. 
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The Chancel Choir performed during the Christmas 
concert at Harvey Browne Memorial Presbyterian 
Church. The church has undergone a $3 million reno-
vation. 



Courtesy http://www.htparish.org/history 
 

History of Holy Trinity Parish 
 

On September 1, 1882, Bishop William McClosky established a new parish for the benefit of the farming community of St. 
Matthews.  Until that time, Catholics went into the city for Mass and other liturgical services.  This new parish, named Holy 
Trinity, was the first Catholic Church in eastern Jefferson County, and the twentieth in the area. 
 

Since the dedication of the first church, on the 17th of December 1882, there have been three subsequent churches.  The first 
two churches were built on what is today Trinity High School.  After outgrowing the first church, a second church was 
built.  This church was heavily damaged by fire in 1937 but was renovated and used until 1953.  At that time, the parish 
donated its property to the archdiocese for the purpose of establishing the first Archdiocesan Catholic high school, and ob-
tained approximately sixty acres on its current site.  Today, our parish property consists of nearly fifteen acres.  After out-
growing the first church on Cherrywood Road, work began on our current church in October 1968 and was dedicated on 
November 2, 1969, by Archbishop Thomas J. McDounough. 
 
 

Courtesy Betsy Stanis, Holy Trinity Church:                   Archdiocesan Book  
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September 21, 1937:  $150,000 Fire Razes Holy Trinity Church.  Flames, discovered at 4 a.m. Tuesday, swept Holy 
Trinity Catholic Church on Frankfort Avenue, St. Matthews, reducing the school section to ruins and causing loss estimated 
by the pastor, the Rev. B. F. Besinger, at $150,000.00. 
 
The blaze slightly damaged a cornice of the sister’s home and threatened the rectory. 
 
Father Besinger expressed the opinion that the entire church structure would be a total loss as walls which did not collapse 
appeared severely weakened.  He opinioned that masses would be held in two frame school annexes in the yard and that 
classes for the 335 pupils would be resumed in those buildings Monday. 
 
Had Insurance:  The loss was partly covered by insurance, Father Besinger said, adding that he would confer with Bishop 
John A. Floersh on plans for continuing activities of the school and church. 
 
A passing workman, noting flames in the attic of the school addition at the north end of the church, ran to the home of J. B. 
Zehnder, 201 Meridian, who summoned the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department.  Sounding of the town’s fire siren 
awakened virtually every resident. 
 
A call to Louisville for aid at 4:17 a.m. sent one engine and Battalion Chief Joseph F. Harper to the scene, detouring via 
Cannon’s Lane and Westport Road, because of impassable construction work on Frankfort Avenue in St. Matthews.  Twen-
ty-four minutes after the first call to Louisville Captain Harper ordered two additional engines. 
 
Sacrament Saved:  Mr. Zehnder spread the alarm to the sisters home.  Meanwhile, Father Besinger and his assistant the Rev. 
K. H. Dreiling awakened by the light of the flames, rushed into the church, saving the chalice, sacrament, vestments, altar 
curtains and part of the altar.  The flames swept through the second floor of the church property used by the school, but did 
not reach the nave. 
 
Four hundred families are parishioners of the church, Father Besinger said.  The school addition, costing $30,000, was dedi-
cated last October.  The church, a two-story brick structure covering approximately 200 by 60 feet, was built in 1915.  Mu-
rals in it were seriously damaged by water. 
 
The ruins hampered effort of investigators to learn the cause of the blaze. 
 

September 22, 1937: The Courier Journal:  Fire-Swept Church Will Be Rebuilt—Damage is Estimated At 
$130,000..  Plans for reconstruction of the Holy Trinity Catholic Church and school annex, St. Matthews, which were swept 
by fire early Tuesday, will be mapped as soon as possible, the Rev. K. H. Dreiling, assistant pastor, said. 
 

Meanwhile, masses for the approximately 450 families in the parish will be held in the gymnasium.  Arrangements for clas-
ses for the 335 pupils, however, were uncertain. 
 

Believed to have smoldered several hours before breaking though, the fire reduced the school section to ruins and left the 
church building proper in such a shape that the Rev. B. F. Besinger, pastor, expressed the opinion the structure would be a 
total loss.  He estimated the damage at $130,000.00. 
 
Workman Notes Flames:  Residents of St. Matthews detected smoke in the air several hours before the blaze was discov-
ered.  W. Jesse Ogden, a member of the town’s volunteer fire department, said, but were unsuccessful investigating the 
source.  It became so unpleasant the windows were closed in some homes, he said. 
 
A workman, passing at 3:50 a.m. noted flames in the attic of the school addition at the north end of the building and ran to 
the home of J. B. Zehnder, 201 Meridian, who summoned the volunteer firemen.  Sounding of the town’s fire siren awak-
ened virtually every resident. 
 
Alarm Is Spread:  Mr. Zehnder spread the alarm to the Sisters home, situated on the church lot, which was slightly dam-
aged.  Meanwhile, Father Besinger and Father Dreiling, assistant pastor, awakened in the rectory by the light of the flames, 
rushed into the building and saved the chalice, sacrament, vestments, altar curtains and part of the altar. 
 

A call to Louisville for assistance brought five pieces of equipment and the Salvage Corps.  Construction work on Frankfort 
Avenue delayed their arrival.  Lieutenant Felix Brannigan and Henry Boehler of the Salvage Corps were cut slightly by fall-
ing metal lathes, but remained on the job. 
 

The school addition, costing $60,000, was dedicated last October.  The church, a two-story brick structure, was built in 
1915.  Flames swept through the second floor, but did not reach the nave.  Walls which did not collapse, however, appeared 
irreparably weakened, Father Besinger said.  The loss was partly covered by insurance. 
 

The ruins hampered efforts of investigations to determine the cause of the blaze.  Deputy State Fire Marshal Arthur C. 
Gandy, who spent three hours going over the ruins, said the ventilating system apparently had much to do with the swift 
spread of the flames. 
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September 23, 1937: The Record:  Holy Trinity Gutted By Fire, Blaze of Undetermined Origin Discovered Early 
Tuesday Morning, Building Recently Enlarged..  A blaze of undetermined origin, discovered by a passerby at 4 o’clock 
Tuesday morning, (Sept. 21), issuing from northwest corner of the roof of Holy Trinity School-Church, St. Matthews, east 
of Louisville, gutted the handsome three-story structure.  Both the St. Matthews and Louisville fire departments responded 
to the alarm, and succeeded in saving the Sisters Home, close-adjoining on the south, and the old frame buildings, formerly 
used as classrooms on the north.  The rectory, to the west, separated from the church by a large playground, was not dam-
aged.  After several hours the flames were brought under control, with the four walls still standing.  The Blessed Sacrament 
had been removed and the vestments saved. 
 
The Rev. B. F. Besinger, C.PP.S., pastor, was endeavoring Tuesday to make arrangements to hold classes with as little inter-
ruption as possible.  A second frame building on the church property, now being used as a gymnasium, will probably be 
fitted up for church use.  Several classes can be accommodated in one of the frame buildings.  
 

The original structure was built by the Rev. John A. Bohlsen, pastor from 1913 to 1925, in 1915.  Less than a year ago, a 
large addition was built increasing the seating capacity of the church in the lower floor and bringing the number of class-
rooms up to ten. 
 

St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, by Samuel W. Thomas, 1999:  The following two pictures and 
the below information:  Soon after a substantial addition was made in 1936, the entire structure was gutted by fire.  Smoke 
was detected in the air by neighbors for several hours before the blaze from an arsonist’s fire could be pinpointed early on 
21  
 

September 1937.  The son of the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department’s chief admitted “setting fire to draperies near 
the altar,” which left the school and church in ruins.  A fireproof school building was constructed on the foundations.   
NOTE:  The boy was later a suspect in various fires and robberies in St. Matthews.  “Bond Set At $1,800 For St. Matthews 
Firebug” The Courier-Journal, 7 February 1939. 
 
 

 

 
Holy Trinity Church & School November 1936 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Aftermath of Fire on 21 September 1937.  Courtesy of 

Earl Combs Stich. 
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Courtesy Al Ring Collection:                                     January 18/19, 1954 

 
 

Courtesy Betsy Stanis, Holy Trinity Church:                   Archdiocesan Book  
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Courtesy Betsy Stanis, Holy Trinity Church:   125 Anniversary booklet  
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Courtesy Betsy Stanis, Holy Trinity Church:   125 Anniversary booklet  
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Courtesy Betsy Stanis, Holy Trinity Church:   125 Anniversary booklet  
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Courtesy Betsy Stanis, Holy Trinity Church:   125 Anniversary booklet  

St. Matthews Area Churches:                          Holy Trinity Catholic Church 



May 30, 2007, The Courier-Journal, Holy Trinity honors its past-Parade Sunday will celebrate parish’s 125th 
Anniversary, by Bill Pike:   Jack Monohan will combine two important 
aspects of his life Sunday -- the lifelong member of Holy Trinity Catholic 
Church and longtime member of the St. Matthews Fire Protection District 
will drive a historic fire truck leading the parade celebrating the 125th anni-
versary of the church.  
 
The procession will go from Trinity High School on Shelbyville Road, 
which was the church's original location, to its current site several blocks 
away on Cherrywood Road.  
 
"We'll have the siren on, and we'll be ringing the bell," said Monohan, who 
was baptized at Holy Trinity in 1937.  
 
Organizers are calling the procession "Retracing Our Steps."  
 
Participants will meet at 1:30 p.m. at the current church, 501 Cherrywood 
Road, so they can be shuttled to Trinity High School, where ceremonies 
will begin at 2.  
 
The parade's grand marshals will be students in the parish school who submitted posters to mark the church anniversary. 
They will ride on the fire truck.  
 
The parade is set for Sunday because that's the feast of the Holy Trinity.  
 
The parish also has scheduled a Mass and dinner Sept. 8 to mark its actual establishment.  
 
Holy Trinity began as a little country church with 200 seats in 1882 on what was then called Shelbyville Pike. The first 
Catholic church in eastern Jefferson County, it was needed because Swiss and German immigrants had moved to farms east 
of St. Matthews, according to the book "St. Matthews: The Crossroads of Beargrass" by Samuel W. Thomas.  
 
The area stayed mostly country until after the 1937 flood, which devastated much of western and central Louisville. That's 
when St. Matthews began growing, said Mary Jean Kempf, who attended Holy Trinity School during the 1930s.  
 
Kempf said the teacher she best remembers was Sister Ambrose, an Ursuline nun who had her students memorize poems, 
including "The Rime of the Ancient Mariner."  
 
"It was long, but sister didn't care," Kempf said. "I still remember some of those poems today. She was strict, but she was a 
good teacher."  
 
Kempf remembers playing dodge ball and jumping rope during recess.  
 
The school and church were rebuilt on Shelbyville Road in 1938, after a fire gutted them the year before.  
 
"Everything but the four walls was gone," said Miriam Gravatte, who is preparing a parish history.  
 
The fire engine that Monohan will drive was used to fight the fire.  
 
Monohan said the figure he best remembers from those years was the Rev. John Knue, pastor from 1938 to 1945.  
 
"He was a big man. He drove an old Hudson automobile," Monohan said. "He had a big voice, too. When he walked into a 
room, he took control."  
 
Monohan, whose grandchildren are his family's fifth generation to belong to Holy Trinity, also remembered school lunches 
prepared by a cook he knew only as Mrs. Bauer. "The food was great. We had barbecue, chili, hot soups, hamburgers. There 
was always a vegetable and fruit. Lunch cost 15 cents."  
 
In 1953, the growing parish moved to Cherrywood Road after donating the Shelbyville Road property to the Archdiocese of 
Louisville for a boys' school called Holy Trinity High School.  
 
The school dropped "Holy" from its name in 1956 to avoid confusion with the parish, said Joey Porter, Trinity's vice presi-
dent for advancement. However, "Holy Trinity School" is written in concrete over the front door of the old building, still 
used by the high school and called Old Trinity Hall.  
 
The parish's new church had 630 seats. But that was soon too small as the parish grew, along with all of St. Matthews. In 
1969, the parish built its fourth church, with 850 seats.  
 
Holy Trinity now has 1,245 families and a total of about 4,300 parishioners, said the Rev. Charles Thompson, the current 
pastor. It has 745 youngsters in its school and kindergarten.  
 
Those figures make it among the largest in the archdiocese.  
 
Reporter Bill Pike can be reached at (502) 582-4243.  
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June 6, 2007, http://www.archlou.org/therecord/article82566c217763.htm —Holy Trinity parish 
celebrates its 125th year in St. Matthews, Glenn Rutherford, Record Assistant Editor. 
More than 100 parishioners visit church’s former sites, then parade back to its current location on Cherrywood 
Road.  There was a time when Holy Trinity Church in St. Matthews was surrounded more by fields and farmland than 
streets and houses. 
  

More than a century ago — long before the St. Matthews neighborhood became an incorporated city in 1950 — the area 
was an agricultural center east of the city of Louisville, a small village on its own with a group of markets and merchants 
centered along the rail line that ran through town. 
  

Just east of the rail station and adjacent to what is now Shelbyville Road, the first Holy Trinity Church was dedicated 125 
years ago. And on this past Sunday, June 3, more than 100 parishioners gathered at that original spot — which is now the 
site of the Trinity High School gymnasium — and held a brief service there and at the three other former locations of the 
church. 
  

Parishioners, led by Holy Trinity’s pastor, Father Charles Thompson, visited each of the church’s former sites at Trinity 
High, then they walked behind a 1931 Seagrave fire engine, restored by members of the St. Matthews Fire Department, back 
to the church’s current location on Cherrywood Road. 
  

Once there, Father Thompson dedicated the parish’s new carillon and the parishioners enjoyed an old-fashioned ice cream 
social to celebrate the occasion. 
  

The first time parish member Dean Washbish set foot in Holy Trinity Church, it was 55 years ago and he was a visitor at-
tending Mass in the wooden building that was then home to the parish.  
  

“Five years later my wife (Boots) and I returned to Louisville and I’ve been a member of the parish for 50 years,” he said. 
They raised their six children in the parish and school, and for a while, Washbish was the school’s football coach. Along 
with other members of the parish, he tried to persuade Msgr. Charles C. Boldrick of the need to build a parish gymnasium.  
  

“He was a wonderful man but he was tough,” Washbish said. “I remember once I was going to confession, and the confes-
sionals had names on them, Msgr. Boldrick and Father Norris, and I got in line for Father Norris but it turned out Msgr. Bol-
drick was in that confessional instead.” 
  

Washbish offered a brief confession, he said, then stepped into the line for the other priest.  
  

“And I said ‘forgive me Father, for I have sinned...it’s been five minutes since my last confession,’” he said. “I’ll never for-
get that.” 
  

The parish finally created a gymnasium, Washbish noted, by convincing Father Boldrick of the need to build another 
church. “Then we used the old one for a gym,” he said. 
  

Back in the 1930s, the parish built a 12-room house for nuns who served at the school, and in 1936 the church building — 
which included the school on the second floor — was enlarged. The church could seat 550 people at that time, but less than 
a year after the expansion, a fire gutted the building and left only the four walls standing.  
  

The 1931 fire truck that led the parish parade on Sunday was part of the equipment that fought the fire. 
  

It was driven by Jack Monahan, who is retired from the St. Matthews Fire Department. “We’re educating our fifth genera-
tion of Monahans at Holy Trinity School these days,” he said. 
  

The fire truck looks show-room new, with gleaming brass and wooden floor boards and running boards. “It’s on its second 
engine, it’s fifth transmission, its seventh set of tires, and its second water tank,” Monahan explained. 
  

“This truck is known as ‘Betsy,’” he said with more than a hint of pride. Monahan also personally owns a restored 1921 
Stutz ladder truck and a 1930 Model A Ford fire chief’s car. 
  

For the parade, students from each grade at Holy Trinity — who won an anniversary-celebration poster contest — were al-
lowed to ride on the fire truck from Trinity High back to the Cherrywood Road location.  
  

These days, Holy Trinity has nearly 1,200 members. Back in 1950, the parish boundaries reached out to Anchorage and be-
yond Middletown. According to the history prepared for the special ceremony by parishioner Mariam Gravatte, the parish 
census was 3,300 in 1950 and Holy Trinity School had an enrollment of nearly 850. 
  

That year the parish was divided into three parts, with St. Margaret Mary and Our Lady of Lourdes parishes being created 
from the huge St. Matthews church. A new school, church, convent and rectory were built on the Cherrywood Road location 
in 1953, and a half-dozen years later, the church had again grown so large that two more parishes were formed from Holy 
Trinity — St. Albert the Great and Mother of Good Counsel. 
  

When the parade made its way from Trinity High to the current parish location, more than 100 people walked behind the 
fire truck while portable loud speakers played rag time and marching tunes, including “When the Saints Go Marching In.” 
  

And after blessing the carillon — and the parishioners — Father Thompson noted that the heat and humidity that surrounded 
the parade made ice cream social especially enjoyable.  
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Many families from the west end of the city of Louisville moved eastward to 
rebuild after they lost their homes in the 1937 flood. Following the end of 
World War II from 1945 to 1950, Louisville and eastern Jefferson County again 
began to experience rampant growth. Local businesses and industries were ex-
panding to supply the demands of the region and country in the booming 
peacetime economy. With hundreds of Louisville families moving from the 
west to the east side of the county, the St. Matthews potato and agricultur-
al area became the huh of a flourishing community. Commercial and residential 
development in St. Matthews started in early 1950 by J. Graham Brown. Catho-
lics in St. Matthews attended Holy Trinity parish, which had been built in 1882. 
The Pope was Pius XII, who had guided the Roman Catholic Church through 
the war and Archbishop John A. Floersh had been our local spiritual leader for 
more than a quarter century. 
 
1949 The Catholic population in St. Matthews had outgrown Holy Trinity with 
enough parishioners to form two new churches and rumors were flying. A brief 
statement issued from the Chancery Office in the April 23"' issue of The Record 
confirmed negotiations were under way "for the eventual establishment of a par-
ish church and school" in the St. Matthews area. The Archdiocese of Louisville 
had foreseen the need of additional parishes and had the groundwork with the 
new boundaries in place. An administrative entity was formed to supervise the 
financial transactions between the three parishes and the Archdiocese until the 
original Holy Trinity parish property could be sold. Our parish was to be 
founded in 1950 with a charter congregation made up of approximately 300 
families and 37% of the funds from Holy Trinity parish. Held in reserve was 

24% for the new St. Margaret Mary parish, founded in 1951. The remaining 39% stayed at Holy Trinity and they relocated 
to their current location on Cherrywood Road in 1953. Those funds became seed money for the construction of the new 
parishes. 
 
The Pastor of Holy Trinity, the Right Reverend Monsignor Anthony George Gerst, was asked by Archbishop Floersh to 
be in charge of selecting the building site for one of the new parishes. Monsignor Gerst purchased land on Breckenridge 
Lane for the Archdiocese from J. Graham Brown. The site had once been the former Tinsley family estate and was dotted 
with small ponds fed by Beargrass Creek and underground springs. Records show Monsignor Gerst was a good steward 
with the Archdiocesan funds as the expenses totaled $239,985 for the new church and school. From that amount, 
$30,318 was for the property; architects' fees were $13,000; church furnishings and equipment came to $18,912 and school 
furnishings were $6,356. 
 
At the same time, the house belonging to Covington Arterburn on the southwest corner of Breckenridge Lane and Nor-
bourne Boulevard was also bought to be used for a rectory. Additional accounts show the investment in the rectory 
totaled $24,914; which included $18,128 for the property and $4,965 for remodeling rooms on the first floor for small 
conference rooms for meeting space.  
 
Jubilee Year 1950 In the Roman:  Catholic tradition, a Jubilee is a Holy Year and a great religious event. It is a year 
of receiving the Sacrament of Penance for the forgiveness of sins and of punishment for sins. It is a year of hope, 
justice and commotment to serve God with joy and in peace with our brothers and sisters. A Jubilee Year is above all the 
Year of Christ, who brings life and grace to humanity. 
 

The Archbishop had Father Gerst at Our Lady of Lourdes, Father Charles C. Boidrick at Holy Trinity, and Father Ehrich J. 
Stuart at St. Margaret Mary assume the responsibility of the development of the three newly formed parish properties. It wasn't 
until February 28, 1951 though, that they were officially appointed as Pastors! 
 
Monsignor Gerst had studied for the priesthood at the North American College in Rome and was ordained on February 28, 
1931 in the Holy City. In 1949, Father Gerst was given the title "Monsignor" which he preferred not to use, choosing to re-
main "Father." He had definite ideas about many facets of parish organization, being considered meticulous, and conserva-
tive with finances. Exactly five years to the day he was appointed Pastor of Lourdes, Father Gerst celebrated his 25th  anniver-
sary of his ordination. Father Gerst is remembered by most with great affection and that he was a scholarly man, subtle with 
directions and guidance. His talents and perceptions enabled him to bridge two distinct eras in Catholics' history. Much of 
his agenda anticipated the results of the Second Vatican Council. More changes took place in the Catholic Church during 
Father Gerst's 27- year tenure pastoring Lourdes, than in the previous 400 years, when in 1563 the Council of Trent had last 
standardized practices. 
 

Father J. Donald Gallagher was the first Associate Pastor, also coming from Holy Trinity. He is remembered as having a 
personality opposite of Father Gerst, and that they worked well together with complementary styles. Father Gallagher started 
right in with renovating, refurbishing and furnishing the rectory. Friends from Holy Trinity, who would become some of our 
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charter parishioners, helped him. At his suggestion, invitations for a "shower" were sent to all the women of the new parish 
to supply household items for the new rectory. Founding parishioner Georgia Ellinger hosted the early summer party and 
said, "A good time was had by all, and we received a lot of good loot!" Holy Trinity's Sewing Committee donated the first set 
of altar linens and their Altar Society donated $510 to purchase candles, wine and supplies for the new church. 
 

In June when the rectory renovation was completed, Father Gerst and Father Gallagher moved from Holy Trinity. Living in 
the "neighborhood" enabled them to work closely with the architects and builder, and to supervise construction of the new 
church and elementary school building. When the excavation for the foundation began, underground  springs were discov-
ered. It reminded Father Gallagher of the springs in Lourdes, France where the Blessed Mother first appeared to 14 year-old 
Marie Bernadette Soubirous on February 11, 1858. Father Gallagher persuaded Father Gerst, who in turn conferred with the 
Archbishop, to formally name the new parish "Our Lady of Lourdes" instead of "Our Lady of the Lakes" as had been origi-
nally suggested. 
 
T h e  n e w  t h r e e - f l o o r  b u i l d i n g  h a d  t h e  c l a s s r o o m s  f i n ished in time to begin school in September 1950 with 
224 children enrolled in kindergarten through seventh grades. (That year the eighth grade stayed at Holy Trinity in 
order to graduate with their original classmates.) The school was the parish's focus of attention in the early years. Parish 
schools had come a long way from their origins, when they were established in America to serve Catholic families who had 
emigrated from Europe. Religious instruction was emphasized, ad d ing  a  fo ur th  " R"  to  " r ead in ' ,  r i t i n '  and  
'rithmetic." Father Gerst contracted with the Ursuline nuns for teachers. Lourdes' first faculty included Sisters teaching 
grades 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6 with Sister M. Aloyse Stocker teaching seventh grade and she also was the first principal. Two lay 
teachers taught the kindergarten and fifth grade. The six Sisters were initially paid a total of about $300 each month. Father 
Gallagher coordinated volunteers to transport the teaching Sisters daily back and forth from their home at the Ursuline 
Motherhouse on Lexington Road. Margaret O'Dea volunteered to help Sister Aloyse several days a week in the school 
office. 
 

Hot lunches were prepared daily in the cafeteria. Mrs. Benita Schlich, a parishioner, was the cafeteria manager from 1950 
through 1975 and was loved both for her cooking and her kindness. Initially, those school lunches with milk cost 25 cents 
each day. Mrs. Schlich was wonderfully organized, operating the kitchen with six employees and six parent volunteers. Im-
agine preparing and serving meals for 800-900 children each day as she did in the late '50s and '60s! Outside the cafeteria 
next to the Children's Garden is "Benita's Bench," which was donated by her children and their spouses on August 15, 1996 
in her memory. 
 

Lourdes' parishioners continued to attend Mass at Holy Trinity until the finishing touches in the church were completed. The 
church was finally finished in December, with celebration of the first Mass on December 8th, the feast of our Blessed Mother, 
the Immaculate Conception. The formal dedication was on Sunday, December 10th, with Mass concelebrated by Archbishop 
Floersh, Father Gerst and Father Gallagher. Timothy Lee Wine was the first child baptized on December 17th. Many other 
"firsts" were also commemorated in the church after the new year. 
 
1951  On January 13th, the wedding of Rita Roppel and Bill Steedly was the first to take place in the new parish. January 
was also the first full month in the new parish. With rapid growth of the new parish, the initial order for collection envelopes 
was for 600 households. With masses on New Year's Day and five Sundays', the total collection received that first month 
came to $2,642. Father Gerst was quite proud of the support of his new parish family. 
 

The Men's Club started on March 12" primarily.to direct and support the sports programs for the boys and girls of the parish. 
The organization also purchased equipment, and coordinated parents and volunteers to coach. The group inaugurated the 
Summer Fish Fry in July to raise operating funds. They also began to meet socially; monthly for communion and then with 
the first annual Father/Son Communion breakfast in 1953. The breakfast tradition continued for about 15 years until the mid 
'60s when more emphasis was placed on families attending Mass together. Valentine's Day brought about the Sweetheart 
Dance. The evening usually included a band for dancing and some "off-Broadway" type entertainment. Remem-ber the "Gut 
Bucket Five" and the Blincoe family?  Sweet rolls and coffee were traditionally served at midnight before the party end-
ed. The Men's Club became the Booster Club, welcoming all parishioners in 1990 when Stewardship was adopted. They 
still meet monthly for fellowship and hosting speakers, run the concession stands and coordinate the annual summer picnic 
now called the Festival/Homecoming. The quality and success of the Men's/Boosters Club dedication to the sports' reams is 
measured by the many awards, trophies and banners displayed in the Activities Center, as well as the activities and programs 
that are so well attended. 
 

On March 7, 1951 the first funeral Mass was offered for Miss Mary Josephine Thorn berry in the new church. 
 

The Altar Society began on April 4th,  with 109 ladies meeting for the first time. They quickly organized a slate of officers, 
the constitution and by-laws, approving them at their next meeting in May. Georgia Ellinger was the first President. Mem-
bership quickly grew that first year to 282. The Altar Society's mission was one of service to the parish. They provided 
needed items for the altar and also took care of the altar and sanctuary. The ladies of the Altar Society gave receptions for 
children making their Sacraments and newly ordained priests from the parish. They prepared and hosted dinners for priests 
leaving for new assignments. At Father Gerst's request, the Altar Society kept him informed of the health and well being of 
the parishioners as they visited the parish homebound. Members of the Altar Society also provided support, prayer, food and 
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sympathy to families of deceased parishioners. That first No-vember they held a Christmas bazaar making a profit of $600. 
Everyone agreed it was a lot of fun and "a wonderful way to meet people." The following year the Altar Society hosted their 
first of many annual Spring Card parties. 
 
In August, Sister M. 'Thecla Shiel's assignment as principal and first 8th grade teacher brought her to Lourdes faculty. She 
had received her Masters in Administration from St. Louis University. 
 

Sister Thecla lived at the Ursuline Motherhouse for three years and was also the Mother Superior. After daily commun-
ion, the Sisters got their coffee and took a cab at 6:45 a.m. to the school. The cabbies vied for the opportunity to drive the 
Sisters each school morning because they felt it brought them good luck! 
 

A small library was adjacent to the cafeteria when school was built. Sister Thecla had the wall removed between the library 
and the Sisters' lunchroom to enlarge the space for the library. At that time, the government still gave money to parochial 
schools, which was allocated to purchase additional library hooks. Parent volunteers ran the library, as there was no full-time 
librarian. Monthly assemblies for the whole school were held for entertainment and handing out merit awards. Sister Thecla 
made sure every student received an award through the school year and handmade the ribbons. When the school bought a 
film projector, movies were shown occasionally. She also implemented the School Senate program that taught the students 
the principles of democratic govern ment and allowed them to participate in the operation of the school. It was the begin-
ning of the Student Council as it is known today. Sister Thecla also remembers Father Gerst as "a wonderful man spending 
time in the school practically every day." 
 
1952 In the early 1950's the teenagers of the parish were encouraged to become a member of the "Clu-La-Lou" Club. 
The name was made up from Church of Our Lady of Lourdes. Each Sunday night, the social group hosted a dance 
for teens from the other Catholic parishes. They danced to jukebox tunes in the auditorium under the church. In 1953, 
the Teen Club and their sponsors donated the marble statue of Our Lady of Lourdes, which is currently on the right side of 
the church facing Breckenridge Lane. 
 

1953  On May 15 th Lo urdes '  f i r s t  c la ss  o f  children was confirmed by Archbishop Floersch; it had been more than 
two years since the church had been dedicated before this sacrament was cel- ebrated for the first time. 
 
That autumn, Father Gerst and the parish bought a school bus to transport the large faculty from the Motherhouse each 
morning. After drop-ping the Sisters at school, it then made rounds picking up children. In the afternoon, the bus returned 
the children first, then the Sisters to the Ursuline campus. Sister Thecla recalls the Sisters nicknaming the bus "Bernadette, as 
it was going daily to Lourdes!" 
 

When Holy Trinity finally made the move to their new location in 1953, their original parish property was vacant. Since 
there was a need for a boy's high school in eastern Jefferson County, another administrative entity known as "Archdiocesan 
High School Corporation" was set up. The AHSC then purchased the property for $600,000. This money was used to repay 
Holy Trinity's, Our Lady of Lourdes' and St. Margaret Mary's building loans from the Archdiocese. Trinity High School 
was opened with only a freshman class in September 1953.  For all four years this class of boys was the oldest in the 
school and was Trinity's first graduating class in 1957. 
 

Our Lady of Lourdes school also provided many opportunities for involvement for the children, their families and pa-
rishioners. In addition to the sports programs coordinated by the Men's Club, Holy Trinity's Cub, Girl and Boy Scouts 
had also moved to Lourdes and began to make their own Troop identities… 
 

In the fall, the Boy Scouts of America honored Father Gerst's request to have number 325 assigned to Our Lady of Lourdes 
troops. The "325" signified March 25th, the Solemnity of the Annuncia-tion of the Lord. In 1953, 100 Cub Scouts were in 
the first 13 dens organized in Troop 325, with Frank Moses as the Cubmaster. Parents organized Lady of Lourdes in March 
1958, and the Men's Club donated $50 toward the cost of the first Charter fees. 
 

The boys and their Leaders have given thou-sands of hours of service over the years, and have certainly enjoyed at least that 
many hours traveling and camping. Remember Scout-o-Rama, Den and Pack meetings, the Blue/Gold dinners, the 
Pinewood Derbies, plant and popcorn sales, the day after the summer picnic and Crooked Creek? 
 

For the first six years after Troop 325 was chartered, Bob Fleck was the liaison (Institutional Representative) to the Boy 
Scouts of America, and Tom Speed has been Lourdes' IR ever since. Charlie Leppert, a Scout dad and Lourdes' parishion-
er, designed the Webelo Scout program during the '60s that the Boy Scouts of America adopted as a national program, 
which is still being used today. 
 

Troop 325 is very proud of the 44 Lourdes' Scouts who have achieved the Eagle rank and they look forward to ten more boys 
accomplishing rank before the end of 2001. Needless to say, the conti-nuity of Thoop 325 is a great success due to Lourdes' 
men's and boys' dedication to Scouting. 
 

1954 As "baby– boomer's" joined the parish and their children started in school, enrollment increased rapidly. Six more 
classrooms were added with a new building addition on the south end of the school. With 13 teachers now on staff the need  
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for a residence for the Sisters on the parish property became a priority. The low hid of $52,658 for a convent 
was accepted in December and construction was started. 
'1955 The new convent with an adjoining chapel had an unfinished basement; a living room, kitchen, large dining room, and 
a full bath on the first floor; the bedrooms and additional bathrooms for the Sisters were on the second floor. The building 
was completed and the Sistcrs were excited to move in. Sister Thecla also became Mother Superior of the convent, in 
addition to being the school principal. 
1956 St. Matthcws was a thriving community in these years. Ncighborhoods were built up around Our Lady of Lourdes. 
The church and school continued to flourish. Eleven Ursuline sisters were now living at the convent. With the growth of the 
school staff, parishioner Betty Fleck became their part-time secretary as a volunteer. 
One of the busiest ladies in the Parish was Rose Sheehy, the first Music Director, who played the organ at most weddings 
and Masses. She was a professional musician and she had helped Father Gei•st "shop" for Lourdes' first organ when the 
church was built. Her husband, James, sang and directed the choir for many years. Mrs. Sheehy retired in 1987 after 37 
years as principle organist. 
 

1958 Pope Pius XII died and the new Pope was John XXIII, elected by the College of Cardinals on October 28th. 
 

1960  Over  800 children were registered in  school. Kindergarten through eighth grades had two classes each; 
with most having 50 or more children per classroom. That year Sister Thecla gave up the eighth grade and became the 
first "non-teaching" principal. The faculty made sure the school gave a quality education working with the challenges 
of enormous enrollments and the changing requirements for qualified teachers. Nuns were permitted to work in Catholic 
schools with a teaching certificate obtained after only two years of college. Some Sisters more than overcame their lack of a 
bachelor's degree with their dedication, perse-verance and renowned classroom discipline. About that same time, the Ursu-
line Order was unable to continue to meet the demands for teaching Sisters. Fewer women were taking vows, some Sisters 
left their order and some pursued social ministries. This led to more "lay" teachers being hired to accommodate the 
ever-growing needs of the school. 
 
The school newspaper was called School Times. The articles to be printed were selected by students and a teacher 
advisor. In the spring issue some of the stories were about school lunches, the Ursuline Festival on May 13th and 14th,  

spring sports, exams and the possibility of a new church! 
 
Late afternoon on Monday, October 3rd, Thomas Weber, a Lourdes 8th grader, riding home on his bike, discovered the 
church was on fire. The fire was centered in the hack of the church, destroying the confessional and the choir loft. Sister 
Thecla, having attended a Teachers' Institute seminar, got to church after the fire trucks had arrived. She surveyed 
the damage and contacted Father Gerst. They thought children playing around the confessional with matches gotten 
from the votive area probably caused the fire. While professionals were called in to clean the smoke damaged school, the 
Sisters organized their many volunteers, and working together, the church was cleaned by 9:30 that evening. The following 
morning, as usual, Mass was held and school was in session! 
 

1961 Sister Thecla was reassigned and Sister Mary Olivia (who later resumed using her family name, Sister Helen Marie 
Schroeder) became the third principal. Her emphasis was on basic Math, English and Literature; and she established the first 
Art and Physical Education classes. Sister Helen Marie also increased space for the Library. The Special Reading program 
for one-on-one tutoring for students with dyslexia was put in place. The initial program used was Dr. Shedd's phonics, which 
was multisensory-based, and was directed by Betty Bergner, and assisted by Carol Ehnes and Kitty Furlong. Betty Fleck's 
part-time volunteering as secretary in the school office became a paid position and she stayed another 18 years. 
 

With the prosperity at that time came plans to erect a new church building. The structure was contemporary at that time and 
was designed by the prominent architectural firm of Nolan & Nolan. The cornerstone was laid, and construction continued 
on the new air-conditioned church. Hays & Nicoulin Construction Company, of which parishioner Leonard J. 
Hays was president, was the builder. 
 
1962 Father Gerst offered the first Mass in the new church on September 30' and Bishop Charles Maloney consecrated the 
altar on November l. These words were written for a program when the new church was finally open, "The visitor to Our 
Lady of Lourdes will surely be impressed by the artwork incorporated into the design and structure of the Church." Much of 
the descriptions that follow come from that same program "offered as an aid to understanding the ideas of the artists... Thus 
have architect, artist and artisan cooperated with the sacrifices of the parishioners, to construct in Our Lady of Lourdes 
church, an edifice in some way worthy of God's Presence, a house of prayer and sacrifice, and a continuing source of instruc-
tion in the mysteries of God's love for his people." 
 

1963 Pope John XXIII died on June 3rd and our new Pope, Paul VI, was elected on June 23. 
 

The Mass dedicating the new church was concelebrated by Archbishop John Floersh, Father Gerst, Fr. Jim Flynn and Fr. 
Torn Duerr on the Feast of the Assumption on August 15, 1963, thirteen years aftcr the Parish began, and it was cause for 
great celebration! 
 
When the original church was vacated, the Men's Club converted it into the parish hail. They built a stage for productions,  
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laid a floor for a gymnasium for physical education, basketball and volleyball, and put in a service bar for concessions and 
special parish functions. 
 

Even though Lourdes' new church had been completed, more physical changes were necessary as a result of the Vatican 
Council II. The modifica-tions were dramatic. The altar was moved forward in the sanctuary so priests offering Mass 
would face the community. 
 

Removal of the altar rail brought tile congregation up to the sanctuary steps at the foot of the altar for Communion, 
symbolic of coming to the Lord's table for our Eucharistic meal. These changes brought the faithful to feel more 
included in the Liturgy. There were also more chances for people to actively participate. 
 

Other religious personnel took on responsibilities outside of teaching, and parishes created new staff positions to take ad-
vantage of the knowledge and resources of the Sisters and Brothers. 
 
Lourdes was one of the first parishes in the diocese to employ a Director of Religious Educa-non. Sister Betty Jane Bar-
nett, SCN, was one of the earliest additions to Lourdes' expanded pastoral staff. Her office was established to serve two 
specific missions of the Catholic Church - overseeing the continuing religious education of adults and parish school chil-
dren; and teaching religion to parish children who attended other schools (CCD - Confraternity of Christian Doctrine). Two 
of her successors were Sister Frances Krurnpleman, SCN, who developed several more programs for the a d u l t s  i n  
t h e  p a r i s h ,  a n d  S i s t e r  M i r i a m  Hixenbaugh, OP. 
 
No Catholic American, grade school age or older, will ever forget Friday, November 22nd when they heard the news of the 
assassination of John F. Kennedy, the only Catholic to have been elected President. Even the school children were touched 
and they wrote about it in the winter issue of The Voice of Our Lady. 
 
1965 Father James Flynn taught a Bible study class at Larry and Ann Andriot's home. It had begun a couple of years ear-
lier as instruction for "converts." Small groups continued to meet there every other Sunday evening for over five years. 
 

Pope Paul VI completed the work his predecessor, Pope John XXIII, had started with the Second Vatican Council, closing it 
on December 12th. 
 

1966 through 1969 With the end of the Second Vatican Council and most of the changes implemented, parish life once 
again settled into a regular routine. In the spring of 1966, Father Tom Malloy started the Christian Family Movement pro-
gram, with small groups of eight to ten couples. 
 

In September the school was "bursting at the seams" with 908 students enrolled. (In retrospect, it is hard to imagine how 
that many children could fit in the existing classrooms; and how Mrs. Schlich, her staff and volunteers could cook to 
feed everyone!) Volunteers were kept busy with main-taining the property and buildings. Ray Kempf, a founding parish-
ioner, had begun to help out in the 50's when the parish opened, and continued to assist when he was needed. He 
recalls hearing from principal Sister Helen Marie, sometimes as often as once a week, when a window needed repair. Re-
gardless of the weather, he would come in at night after the building was vacant, carrying a bucket of window putty, to fix 
the windows so the children would be comfortable the next school day. 
 
Now with a black and white television in almost every home, more foreign influences and information came into St. 
Matthews. Many national topics were covered in school and written about in the monthly school newspaper: "Folk Masses" 
- lively music played with guitars and sung in English; "The Mod Look" - bright colors, big flowers and mini skirts; 
"Open Housing" - selling your home to a minority; "Race to the Moon" - Americans' and Russians' competition in space; the 
"War in Viet Nam" - communism and so many people being killed; and "Catholic Education" - the privilege of learning a 
Christian way of life. Boys copied "The Beatles" longer hair, while Twiggy and the girls cropped theirs' short! 
 

Outside the school, larger issues were of note: Martin Luther King, Jr. and racial equality, his assassination and that of Rob-
ert Kennedy in 1968, "hippies" at Woodstock. At the movies we watched "The Sound of Music" and "Mary Pop-
pins," and on TV we saw "Leave it to Beaver" and "Gomer Pyle." 
 
In the summer of 1969,  most Americans watched with great pride as Neil Armstrong landed, walked and golfed on the 
moon... "One small step for man, one giant leap for mankind." 
 

1971 The Rectory was increasingly busy as all bookkeeping and recordkeeping were done there. A new two-story rectory, 
to be the home and office for the Pastor and two assistant priests, was built adjacent to the church. The first floor had several 
small offices, a conference room, kitchen and dining room, and a small apartment (bedroom, sitting room and bath) for a 
live-in housekeeper. The second floor consisted entirely of living quarters; four bedrooms, a sitting room and three bath-
rooms. The basement was finished and car-peted. It had a large meeting room (with moveable partitions to make up an of-
fice as needed) and two additional offices for the Director of Religious Education and Administrative Assistant. Several 
priests were "in residence" through the years while they taught at Trinity, and they also helped out with religion classes at 
Lourdes' school and with saying Mass. 
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to become a complaint department for petty issues. Since Sister Helen Marie efficiently ran the school, there were usually 
minimal problems to address. One of the first changes approved for the '71 -'72 school year was a modification to the uni-
form to allow girls to wear slacks instead of jumpers or skirts. 
 
Sister Helen Marie and Sister Michael Ann began the Special Reading program for one-on-one tutoring for students 
with dyslexia. They first met after school and on Saturday mornings. The initial program used was Dr. Shedd's phonics, 
which was multisensory-based, and the following year Betty Bergner became the Director. Carol Ehnes and Kitty Fur-
long joined as assistants, becoming supervisors and training parents to help with tutoring. The program was eventually 
adapted for Lourdes' own use and Dr. Shedd's program was discontinued. 
 
1973 The Second Vatican Council required increased involvement of "Laity in Parish Life," leading to the establishment of 
a Parish Council. Father Gerst was hesitant to form the Council because it meant a change in leadership style, but he did 
support it with grace "as an obedient servant of the Church." Many of the activities within the Men's Club and the Altar 
Society would now fall into committees being formed within the Parish Council. With Henry Kauffmann as the first Presi-
dent of the Parish Council, the group of involved parishioners carefully proceeded along the lines suggested by the Vati-
can. They organized the committees for Administration (Financial), Formation (Religious Education), Worship (Liturgical 
Services) & Service (Volunteer Activity). The Altar Society's "Neighborhood Reps" became part of the Service Committee 
when the parish territory was divided into 12 areas. Each area had approxi-mately the same number of households 
and a person was elected from each particular area to stay in touch with parishioners and to report any information back to 
Parish Council. The Council meetings were regularly held in the new rectory basement. 
 

H o l y  Y e a r  1 9 7 5  H o l y  Y e a r s  a r e  e v e r y  25 years and this  year it coincided with the 10 anniversary of 
the of the closing of the Second Vatican Council. Renewal, Prayer, Pilgrimage, Reconciliation and Evan-
gelization were the dominant themes for this Holy Year. 
 

In the fall of 1975 with the start of busing for racial integration in the Jefferson County Public schools, a parochial education 
became popular. For the first time in 
many years, student capacity became a 
problem, and some applicants had to be 
turned away. 
 

Our Lady of Lourdes celebrated the 25" 
anniversary of the founding of the parish 
with Mass on Sunday evening, November 
2nd. Archbishop Thomas J. McDonough 
was principal celebrant, with Bishop 
Maloney and Pastor Gerst. Thirteen other 
priests, either once assigned to Lourdes or 
ordained from the parish, were in attend-
ance for the 7:30 p.m. Mass. Lourdes' 
choir was accompanied by the New Louis-
ville Brass Quintet. A reception was held 
in the parish hail immediately following 
the Mass. 
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Courtesy Al Ring collection: 
 
October 6, 1960:  Fire Damages Lourdes:  A fire which broke out in the confessional at the rear of the sanctuary Mon-
day at Our Lady of Lourdes Church caused damage estimated at less than $5,000.00. 
 
As to the origin of the fire Father Anthony Gerst, pastor, refused to comment. 
 

The fire broke out at 4:45 p.m.  St. Matthews Volunteer firemen battled the blaze for about an hour.  The fire damaged the 
confessional, flooring and pews in the rear of the church, and the balcony, and broke several windows. 
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